Ay
o

? KERN REGIONAL CENTER

&

1
Ci ﬂr&’&

Striving to- Achieve Equality,

Independence and Empowerment

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

Recretin Polic

Meeting Location and Time:

Via Zoom Webinar on November 30, 2021 at 6:00 PM
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/839985950452pwd=MEZDbk1mdGFyTTZ0oQ1Y4bHhKdEJvZz09

November 30, 2021
General Business
1. Call to Order and Introductions Action President Bains
2. Approval/Additions to Agenda Action President Bains
3. Review and approve minutes of meeting held October 26, 2021 Action President Bains
(Attachment 1)
4. Public Input Info. Et al
5. New Board Member Applicants Action President Bains
e Tracey Mensch
e Carlos Isadoro
6. Nomination and Election of Vice President Position Action President Bains
Reports
7. Board President Report Info. President Bains
8. Financial Report Info. Tom Wolfgram
a. POS Report through September 2021 (Attachment 2)
b. OPS Report through September 2021 (Attachment 3)
9. Executive Director’s Report Info. Dr. Gates
10. VAC Report Info Shawn White
11. Staff Report
a. Review/Approval of Updated Performance Contract Action | Enrique Roman
Plan 2022 (Attachment 4) Action Enrique Roman
b. Employment First Policy (Attachment 5) Action Celia Pinal
c. Review/Approval of Socialization Leisure and

Webinar ID: 839 9859 5045, Passcode: 611416
Dial-In Number: 1-669-219-2599

Next Board of Directors Meeting:
January 25, 2022 at 6:00 PM




Kern Regional Center (KRC)

Attachment 1

3200 N. Sillect Avenue oo Bakersfield, CA 93308 e 661-327-8531

Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting
October 26, 2021, 6:00 — 7:30 p.m.
Zoom Webinar

KRC BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Oscar Axume, Board Member
Jasmeet Bains, MD, President
Kevin Gosselin, Treasurer

Ryan Jones, Board Member
NickoleRenee Mensch, Vice President
Donald Tobias, Board Member
Mark Tolentino. Board Member
Simon Verdugo, Board Member
Ruth Watterson, Board Member
Shawn White, VAC Representative

STAFF PRESENT:

Michi Gates, Executive Director

Joseph Grounds, Emergency Response Coordinator
Kristine Khuu, Assistant Director of Client Services
Kary Morris, Human Resources Manager

Celia Pinal, Director of Client Services

Enrique Roman, Director of Community Services
Tom Wolfgram, CFO

INTERPRETER:
Nidya Madrigal Navia

CALL TO ORDER

KRC BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:
Martin Vasquez, Secretary

ATTENDEES PRESENT:

John Noriega, Facilitator for Simon Verdugo

Edwin Pineda, DDS

(Please see attached page for additional attendees)

BACK-UP INTERPRETER
Marisol Resendiz

Dr. Jasmeet Bains, President, called the meeting to order at 6:10 PM. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

One item was changed on the agenda. Item 10, Staff Report, read Approval of 2022 Performance Contract/CRDP.
Mr. Roman would not be presenting CRDP, so “CRDP” was removed.

President Bains requested a motion to approve the agenda for today’s Board of Directors meeting
changing Item 10 to read, Approval of 2022 Performance Contract.

M/S/C (Mensch, White)
Ayes = 10; Nays = 0; Abstained =0
Motion Carried

The change will be reflected on the finalized agenda.

\

—'

%KERN REGIONAL CENTER

1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OCTOBER 26, 2021



REVIEW OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 28, 2021

All Board Members have reviewed the revisions made to the minutes of the meeting held on September 28,
2021.

President Bains requested a motion to accept the revised meeting minutes of September 28, 2021.
M/S/C: (Watterson/White)
Ayes = 10; Nays = 0; Abstained = 0
Motion Carried

KRC BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESIDENT REPORT
Dr. Jasmeet Bains, President

Nothing to report currently.

FINANCIAL REPORT
Tom Wolfgram, Chief Financial Officer

Purchase of Services Report as of August 31, 2021
Total spent on services to clients: $16,063,469. A copy of the POS Report (Attachment 2) is filed with these
minutes as a matter of record.

Operations Report as of August 31, 2021
August Expenditures: $1,655,921. A copy of the OPS Report (Attachment 3) is filed with these minutes as a
matter of record.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Dr. Michi Gates

Dr. Gates provided updates on COVID-19 and the vaccine. COVID-19 infections among KRC individuals seemed
to be declining but went back up the past week from 9 cases to 15. The majority of individuals continue to be
those living in the family home. As of October 8", 629 KRC individuals have been diagnosed with COVID-19 since
data was first collected in March of last year. New cases among provider staff have decreased since this past
surge with typically four or less new cases being reported per week.

KRC continues to contact individuals monthly to inquire about overall needs, ask about vaccine status and
provide support to access vaccines as needed. Currently, 68% of KRC individuals 12 and older indicate they have
received one or both shots or have declined the vaccine. 65% are fully vaccinated and 31% have declined to be
vaccinated. Compared to statewide data the percentage of KRC individuals who are vaccinated is the same but
our individuals are more likely to decline the vaccine.

As reported at our last meeting, all regional center employees are now required to be vaccinated unless they
have a medical or religious exemption. KRC has notified our staff of the requirement. Provider staff are also
required to be vaccinated. KRC participated in a provider meeting to discuss these requirements and to offer to
partner in any way we can with respect to testing options and informational forums.

Dr. Gates is excited about the new initiatives being implemented and new positions being added.

\\

(

/ KERN REGIONAL CENTER 2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OCTOBER 26, 2021




DDS Rate Study, regional centers will need to implement the first rate changes in April and in July there will be
outcome based rate adjustments. Rate changes will differ for each provider instead of by service code so it will
be a huge lift but these rate adjustments are extremely important for our providers and the quality of the
supports they provide to the individuals we serve.

KRC’s Deaf Services Coordinator position is posted. This is not a case carrying position but will support our
individuals who are deaf and hard of hearing with development of and access to needed resources.

KRC has two positions posted for Participant Choice Coordinators. These positions are also not case carrying.
They will support individuals and staff with transitions to the Self-Determination program and also with access
to participant choice services.

KRC will soon be posting four positions for Service Coordinators for 1:40 ratio caseloads for individuals who are
non-white or non-English speaking and have low, less than $2,000 or no POS. DDS is working on an
implementation plan with a training curriculum and key milestones.

Provisional Eligibility for 3- and 4-year-olds will provide a the ability to support children who may not meet
Lanterman eligibility criteria but can be more accurately assessed when they are older.

Social Recreation has been prohibited since the great recession but is now being restored. KRC has a very good
policy in place, but a few revisions are being made to make services more accessible to individuals.. This revised
policy will be brought to the Board in November. DDS has requested an outreach plan and any necessary policy
revisions to be submitted by December 15%.

KRC does not have an Employment First Policy in place yet, however, a draft policy was brought to the Board in
February 2021 for review. The policy will be brought back to the Board again in November for a second review
and possible approval.

The Performance Improvement Program is a program designed to establish performance measures that result in
a high-quality system for our clients. Dr. Gates is a member of a DDS workgroup tasked with discerning what
these performance measures might be and ensuring that all plans developed are person-centered and outcome
based.

Implicit Bias training will be required for all Regional Centers as one of the initiatives addressing disparity.

Dr. Gates introduced Joseph Grounds, KRC's new Emergency Response Coordinator. This is one of the new
positions funded for regional center in the current budget. Mr. Grounds introduced himself and addressed the
board.

KRC Audits are in process. The DDS Fiscal Audit continues. The DDS HCBS Review is in November and the DDS
Family Home Agency Review is in December.

The DDS Self-Determination Focus Group, of which she is a member, will be meeting on Friday.

NickoleRenee Mensch is ending her term with the Board. She has completed 7 years with the KRC Board of
Directors and has been an active, engaged member who has been incredibly valuable to KRC during her tenure.
A wonderful documentary, that can be viewed on the KRC website, tells the story of her self-advocacy work. She
has served as Vice-President, a Nominating Committee member, and an ARCA Board Delegate. Dr. Gates wished
her the best and plans to continue to have interaction with her and benefit from her knowledge! Thank you,
NickoleRenee. We hope you will be back after a year off!

»%KERN REGIONAL CENTER 3 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OCTOBER 26, 2021

SHriat e Eguality



VENDOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Shawn White, Vendor Advisory Committee Representative

The VAC Committee did not meet today, but a meeting was held on October 19 to discuss some of the concerns
of the vendors surrounding the new vaccine mandate and how it might affect vendor staffing and other HR
issues. Dr. Gates attended and offered a lot of information that was appreciated.

Because of the short month of November and the Holiday at the end of the month, it was decided to have the
VAC meeting on November 16 at 10:00 AM.

CONTRACT PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES

The Contract Performance Objectives Performance Report for 2020 was brought to the Board by NickoleRenee
Mensch. The entire report is attached to these minutes (Attachment 4) as a matter of record and will also be
posted on the Kern Regional Center website.

PUBLIC INPUT
(Rigo Lopez) Just wanted to say that Kern Regional Center and the Board all do a great job.

(Daniel Esparza) This is his first time doing this. He got on late and has been participating since the middle of the
meeting. He was warmly welcomed by the Board. “NickoleRenee is a good worker and she will be missed.” He
loves everyone on the Board!

(Grace Huerta) The Performance Contract was difficult to see. She is a parent to an adult client of KRC and works
with the Exceptional Family Center. She has a lot of contact with families. With the pandemic, it has been
overwhelming for adult clients who have stayed in the home. She is very grateful for PathPoint and they are
looking forward to having more adult day programs. Are there plans in the future to open more options for adult
clients?

(Dr. Bains) We would love to get those services available if vendors are available to open.

(Dr. Gates) The CRDP (Community Resource Development Plan) was created for developing resources,
specifically for those in the community. If we can get input from the community outlining services that they
would like to see, as well as unsolicited vendor requests, we can start the processes of getting services in place.
Enrique Roman and Karina Proffer, KRC’s Cultural Specialist, are also working on what kinds of resources can be
developed for areas that don’t have many resource options available.

(Enrique Roman) As California goes into the process of complying with HBCS, many site-based programs may
“evolve” by changing some of the services that they offer. Types of services may change a bit, offering more and
varied programs, and this is exciting.

(Grace Huerta) She noticed that we continue to see an increase in our Hispanic population which is very typical
of Kern demographics. Very few of Exceptional Family Hispanic families fully understand the Self-Determination
process. Do KRC’s numbers reflect Hispanic participation in the Self-Determination Program?

(Dr. Gates) We are tracking the SDP Program on our online Learning Management System in both English and
Spanish as well as other places. Anything that KRC can do to partner with Exceptional Families to increase
participation will be firmly welcomed and supported. Another positive factor will be the Community Navigator
position that should be coming to Exceptional Family Center. This position will be instrumental in
communicating services available to our community.

(Kristine Khuu) There was more participation before the pandemic among the Hispanic population, but during
the pandemic it decreased. Right now, Kristine estimates a Hispanic participation rate of approximately 15%.

%KERN REGIONAL CENTER 4 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OCTOBER 26, 2021




(Celia Pinal) Katie Ramirez, with Ally, has been working with us and is very dedicated to the Hispanic population.
She has stressed that the Hispanic understanding of SDP takes time and she works with them on the measures
needed for good communication.

(Grace Huerta) Are IPPs and Quarterly Reviews good opportunities to explain SDP to the client and families?

(Celia Pinal) There is a one-sheet informational document that has been given to Program Managers and this
handout will be handed out to the families during an IPP. Celia is collaborating on this effort with Ana Leheny
and Jennifer Rimer, Assistant Directors in Client Services, who will be working on SDP. The Participant Choice
Specialist will be involved in educating families with any participant choices and services available also and we
look forward to that person coming on board.

STAFF REPORT
Approval of 2022 Performance Contract — Enrique Roman

Mr. Roman is asking the Board to approve the 2022 Performance Contract outcomes and activities. He explained
that the contract is broken down into 2 sections: 1) Public Policy Performance Measures and 2) Compliance
Measures. We develop the contract using measures set by DDS, but the community is asked for input and
feedback on the development of activity used to meet these measures. We took this plan to the community in
September and provided to the Board for their review. Mr. Roman asked for any questions or comments; there
were none.

President Bains requested a motion to accept the 2022 Performance Contract and forward the contract
to DDS.

M/S/C: (Mensch/Gosselin)
Ayes = 10; Nays = 0; Abstained =0
Motion Carried

The 2022 Performance Contract is attached to these minutes as a matter of record (Attachment 5) and will also
be posted on the KRC website.

Some discussion took place about when the Board Meeting could take place in person. The Board felt that in-
person meetings should be postponed through the Winter season and to revisit the question next Spring or
when there is more of an indication of safety around COVID-19 spread.

ADJOURNMENT
With nothing further to discuss, President Jasmeet Bains adjourned the meeting at 7:05 PM.

The next public meeting will take place on Tuesday, November 30, 2021, at 6:00 p.m.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Darlene Pankey

/ KERN REGIONAL CENTER 5 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OCTOBER 26, 2021

m

1Lty
J

m



6Cl€CC BY = - - - - E E - - 266'SEE G €907.b'9F  09LELYOL 30IAY3S 40 ISYHONN TYLOL
2€8'2v9 - . - 2 ® » . - - 266'902 828'90C 860'62¢ 1d LNIW3OV1d ALINNWNOD T¥LOL
951'LT 2506 2506 250’6 llloe4 81ed Ajunwuwiod
- joid - aieD [eapaN
- $32IABS JBUI0
BEL'S 106'L €18'L sev'L S$92AIBG pazioyiny Jauylo
98 uopnepodsues)
- swelbold-5a21AIS [eaIpajy-UON
- S32IAJBS |BDIpaN-UON
- Buutes) Aeg
“ Aoed INS/401
LES'0L9 6€0'961 118's61 Lzo'sle Kunoe a1e9 Aunwwod
NV1d LNIWIOV1d ALINNWWOD
1627085 LY = - = g - - = - - 00062t GH GEC'/9C 9L 290'v8L ok S30IAY3S 40 ISYHOENd TYLOL
£19'810'9 - - # s " - - - 8 L1E'Tr0'8 1€5'156'8 £9/'¥20'6 S3I0INYIS YIHLO TVLOL
£60'99 vEL'SE 086'8L BLE'LE 8WoH Jo InQ - a1e) aydsay
125'065'% 9zy'8r0’L 6LE'ESL') z8l'88L'L SWoH u| - aseD ajidsay
L¥6'EEL ezl'zy 869'8p ozi'ey Boud saonIag ealPa
LEE'66Y 886'L€EL 98/'88l 185'2LL Joid s80IAIag [B2IPBN
85€'vZ €59'L1 gsb'9 0s2'9 uawdinb3 |eaipay
- ale) |ejdsoH
Lo0'9z 192’8 £08'8 Lv6'8 asuadx3 |9 d
191'690'LL 08€'259'e 9/0'z.9'¢ S0L'vpL'e S32IAlaS pazuoyiny JaYi0
266°'L0L'} ¥$0'895 ¥02'8.S ¥pL'195 $92IAJBS UonUBASI]
sev'Lel'L £L£'€95 6hb'L65 £99'095 s)oeJUOD Uohepodsue) ]
898'LEE'L [RTard 44 BhY'vbY 89L'Ghi uonepodsue )
6zv'sk 15e'8L Lpb'sl LE9'LL Boud sao1nIas 81D BWOH
902'856' 604's92'} voL'8ve’} EEE'PPE'L Boid s991A18S [edIPSN UON
60Z'L¥8 210'892 202'292 06¥'S0E J0id $90IAI8S [BDIPAIN UON
S30IAY3S ¥IHLO
Llv'0zL's - - * - 5 ” . - - 126'528'C 952'€66'C ¥62'L06'2 SWYHO0Yd AVA TVLOLENS
905'81 v9e'9 Z51'9 066'S wesBoid AIAnaY siom
69.'8yL'L syz'oze 88L'6zy 9EE'E6E JuswAojdw3 pspoddng
LEL'66E'L £89'vP1'T 085'¥05'Z 898651’ Bures) Aeq
LL0'PSL SE9'8Y 9£E'ES 00l‘es a1eD Aeq
SWVYH¥90¥d Ava
£02'LP8'TL " “ - & - - - e - 95.'092'y Trb'eze'y 500'852'% IWOH 40 LNO TVLOL
0zs've LiE'9L 880'v8 SLi'Lg Auoed ANS/401
€89'665°C) BEV'VBL'Y pGE'BET'Y 068'9.L'y Anroed ased Munwwod
3JWOH-40-1N0
_ [e1oL _ ¢Z0g sunf 2Z0c ke TZ0c MY | czoz UoIeW | ceoz Meniasd| zzog Aenuer 120e 120¢ 1202 189010 120C 120z 1snbny 1eoz Ainr S30INY3S 40 ISVHOENd
220e-1zoe Jaquiasag JaquwanoN Jaquiaydas

¢ luswiyoeny

1202 '0¢ ¥3EW3L1d3S 40 SV
220Z-120T Ad

30IAN3S 4O ISVYHOINd
HILINID TYNOIOIH Nyay



¥68'6£0C) 1SE'7Y9S = = g 2 - = - ¢ - 888'LVZ C 126559'L 8vLZVLL €90'500°€ 9871¥0EC SNOILYY3dO TV.LOL
596'Z1 ¥60'92 - . § = - - ® - “ 86V'6 88€'8 102'8 650'6€ 916'0vC dOS T¥.L0L18NS
806'€} SZ0'ch 8ELE 00 v 7807 ££6 6C 965561 SesUsdxg buRelsd0
(ev6) 690'vL 19L's 88l'y ozl'y ozL'el o0ze'se siyeuag ¥ saleles
WVYH90Yd NOINYdWNOD ¥OINIS
(252'L) 80E'EE - - : - - - 3 - - S80'SL 0z8'ol pOy'L 150'2€ €9'/61 d94 1V.L018NS
[CEI2) 1671 1ZE0) €6EZ CEOV Tete [EEyE4 S8sUadx3 bunelsdo
[{(Y2))] LIG'LL €LY Lev'e LL8'e ovL'oL 608'69 sjyauag g sauees
WVHO0Yd LNIHYJANYHO ¥31S04
- G - - - 4 . - 5 - - = - - - » ddd vL018ns
= - sasuadx3 bupeiadQ
= - sjysuag @ sauejes
NY1d INIWIOVId ALINNWIWOD
(209'150'2) §55'685'S - - - § - . B - - S0E'LLT'T €12'989'} L8S'1EL'L £56'CES'E 161'€09'cC $dO V.LOLENS
108v'€92) 08V'866 €G8'09E 8087IE 618'¢ce 000'GEL 0000+7 ¥ S95UadXJ buNesdo
(czL'ess't) 6/0'/85'y e5p'958'L S06'L2E'L 8il'sor’t £56'86.'C /61'e61'8L Slyouag @ saleleg
SNOILYY3dO
mwnz:;mmSQ_ TVIOL 22/0E/90 TeITEIS0 CCIOEIY0 [4715350) _ ¢ei8eico _ CeVEIL0 1ZIVEICt LZIOEIL L L2ITEI0L 12/0€/60 1Z/VE/80 12IVEIL0 31va IUNLIANIIX3
Ol ¥v3A a3S0do¥d
120Z ‘0 ¥IEWIL1d3S 40 SY
2202/120Z Ad
SNOILY¥3dO

€ Juswyoeny

HILNID TYNOIDIY N¥IXM



SIX'14v¥QA 2202 Ueld 10ejjuo) souewiosd | abed

"2202/0¢g/2T Aq bumes Ajlunwiwiod e Ul paAlas 8 10U pjNod oym

PaAJs 8q 0] siawnsuod buimolje ‘Alobaed Buisusdl mMau e Japun aq Aew

SSWOH "SIDIAISS DAISUSJUI 24INbal OYM SI0IARYS] S13ASS 10/pue [edIpaw
X3|dWOod Ym S|enplAipul SAISS PINOM Jey) sawoy AJunwiwiod dojanaq e

'sbumas
Ajlunwwiod e 03 I93usd [RJUBSWAO[RASP DY) WOL) SISUWNSUOD SAO
"JusWsded 10) BLIS}D 198 OYM SI33US) [RUSWAdO[RASP BU3 Ul Buipisal
SIawnsu0d Joj (33epdn/jeniur) Juswissasse aAisuaya.Idwod 239|dwo)) e

'suondo |[e o)enjeAs 03 way) abeinodus pue ‘a|ge|ieAR s3I0 [|B JN0ge
SI3WNSU0D pue Je3s Iajuad [eyusudolaAsp ‘Saljiiey Woul [[IM Dy e

(123334 si 1omoy)
*SPaaU SIaWNSUO0D UM (0Q) s1zua)
JUSISISU0D 9|gissod Jansuaym DQ By3 Woly syuswade|d 1095ap [[IM DY e lejuawdojanaq ui

TT %TT°0 |SST %Z0°0|0T %0T°0|99Z ©%S80°0 SIBWNSU0D J93UD)

Jeuoibay jo juadiad
pue jaqunp '

"P33U paynuspl Jayjo Aue pue ‘quswasded |eruspisal ‘[ejusp

‘leoipaw pazijenads ‘sdue)sisse 1-03-T ‘uonepodsued) Buipnppui ‘spoddns

[eyusws|ddns ‘sweiboid Aep ‘sbuimas adiales [enuapisal YBnoay) Spaau

9soy} buneaw Jo sAem dypads saynuapl uejd sy *sisjuzd [ejuswdojansp

ul Bulpisa. sjenpiAlpul JO SRDIAISS pue SpaBU JUS.IND B3 sauiuapl

YIym “(dayd) ueld Juswdofeaaq 8an0say Apunwiiod/(ddd) uejd
Juswisde|d AjlUNWWO) z-TZ0g Y3 Juswajdwi 03 SNURUOD [[IM I e

"uone|ndod pazjjenads siyy buinias Ul paisalsiul siapiroid
Ajiunwiwod 03 uonewoyul a6 pue (YyjesH [eIUSY JO Juswpeds( se
yons sapjoy Asx yyum bunssw diysisupied *a°1) yoeaN0 Op [IM Y e
‘Alunwwod
93 0jul buirow Jswinsuod ayy 03 Joud Spasu SJaWNSUOD a3 bunsaw
0} [PRUSSSe a.e ey spoddns AJnuapi pue sa01AIs UBISSP [[IM DY o

2oz | e | 92 | i oun
8wioo3nQ analydy o3 Aojduwrg JjIm 123ua) [eUOIGIY SAIYALIOY e A\%hw M_MMMWM 4P e QMWMMWM w‘.w sainseap
o). 7 o).} i

(pa.iinbay) sainseap aoueuriofad Asiod olqnd
TC0C (s)1ea, tepusjed 13ju3) |euoIbay uId)y

NV1d LOVYLNOD FONVINHO4¥3d
¥ JuswWydeNYy



SIX'L4WV¥Ad 2202 ue|d 1oBlju0) sduewiolad

Z abeg

(4ap339 s1 12Yb1Y)
sawoy
Aousb
AjiqejeAe yYH4Y ssealou] e . 609t 0ce 8€9'T (VHdv) A v
"Sjuswiadinbal buojiuow Aloyniels uym Aidwod 03 ueid dojanaq e 9T %ty %680 %EV Y %€E€6°0 SHIOH Aled
! 1oy N1els YIM Aj 1 uej [°A=d o () o NPV ul Bupisal
syinpe jo juadiad
pue Jaqunp ‘S
(183394 s1 42Yb1Y)
p buial] payioddns
'$s200.1d patajusd-uos.tad e buisn saljiwe) pue siawnsuod yym suondo 86 %S/ 6 8v<’‘6 T0S 09Z°6 ur Buipisai
° . . . 1 buipl
(S1S) so1uas Buia papoddns uo uopew.ojul 9pIACId 03 SNURUOD) e %8T'S %80'0T %8¢'S s3npe o Jusdiad
pue Jaqunp ‘v
(121394 s 13yb1y)
*'SS900.1d patajuad i p Bbuiay Juspuadapul
-uosiad e buisn ssijiwe) pue SIBWNSUOD YyM suondo (S11) seanss|60b %108 wow h.ﬂ 0 wo¢.w owWﬂMuﬂH ui buipisau
bulAI Juspuadapu] apinoid pue SSNISIp [|IM SI0JRUIPI00D DDIAISS e /9L°6 ~Ll 0 s}inpe jo juadiad
pue Jaqunp '
(49129 s1 1ayb1y)
(ueipsenb ‘Ajnwey
"(s)e3usD ; ; A , 193504 ‘Ajnwey
92In0saYy Ajied Inoge syualed 0 [B4I9Ja] pue UONLWIOUI SPIAOI] e 6st’S 6ETC8T cvo's 96T°LLT UMO) saljlwey
%7<79°66 %€S°'66 %TS'66 %8Y°66 yaMm BuIpisa.
sJoujw jo juadiad
pue Jaqunp ‘g
"uaJp|Iyo anJss 03 swesboud dojaasp 03 anunpuo)) e
A
£ an mmaﬁ ) 74174 mmmww o | 920z sunc
auI0o1nQ aA81YdY 03 AojduuF [[IM 193UBD [BUOIESY SIIJAIIOY ouleseg AIng abesany se aulaseg abeiany sonseap
rr apImMajes e apimajels

NV7d LOVYLINOD JONVINHO4H3d




SIX' 1 4v¥d 220T ue|d 19eJ3u0) asuewlouad ¢ abed
(4op3q st 18yb1Yy)
(sawoy
Ajjweg pue Aousby
SWoH Ajjwey 3npy
VAS A 7 LLT'TYT 8Ly 0T9'ZvT ‘6uini| payioddns
‘aA0qe bno. 235 o :
q€ 9% UDNQUR €4 %85 %1598 | %tzz8 | %9098 | %sz'Ts | 403uspuadepur)
sbuipes
awoy uj buipisau
s3|npe jo juadiad
pue Jaqunp '/
(122q sy 12461)
(ueipaenb 10 juaied
"swoy Ajwey syl v6T'E TIL'6TT IST'E TSO'VIT J0 swoy) sawoy
Ul SIBWnsuod ulejuiew o3 Joddns pue sadiAISS apiAoid 0] snuRuUO)) e %TS¥9 %9€99 %6€£°€9 %869 Ajwey uj buipisal
syinpe jo juadiad
pue laqunp '9
MMMM‘ Izocz aung mnmwwa ozoz aung
aui021n0 aAdIYdYy 03 Aojduig [[IM 183UBD [BUOIBSY SIIAIIOY o BB abeiany ik i abesany sainseap
5 M& g apImazels = Mk g apimazels

NV7d LOVHELINOD JONVINHO4H3d




SIX"14¥¥Hd ¢20¢ ue|d Joejjuo) aduewlolad

¥ abed

(437139 SI 4om0f)
(100
—_— - ‘ANS “401) - £ ueyy
"safl|ioe) 9bJej Ul synpe et} pue Ajuapi 03 snupuoD  |6% %960 %8I TS %¢€0°T %90°Z 193ea.1b Buinies
sani[oey} ul buiaj|
synpe jo juadiad
pue J2qunp ‘6
(12139 s/ 4omoy)
*'(400°4dNS
: 4D1) - £ ueyy
wewaoeidf ) o noof 65 0 29 1232016 BulnILS
[BUORNINSUI JO YS1 Je UBJP[IYD del) pue AJauspl 03 SNURUO) e %€0°0 %00°0 %7100 sonu[Ioey ul BuiAl
sioujw jo juadiad
pue Jaqunp ‘g
&WMMWQ Icoc NNMWWQ ococ sung
auwoo1nQ aA31YdY 03 Aojdwig [[Im 183U [eUOIB3Y SIIJNIIDY e AIng abeiany s abeiany sainseap
5 MM g apImajels 5 Mk g apImajels

NV7d LOVHLNOD JONVINYO4¥3d




SIX"14vHd 220¢ ue|d joeljuo) souewliojlad

G abed

‘syuedpiued dId Jo Jaquinu

(121394 sy 418yb1Y)
"welbo.d
diysussyug pied

95e3.0U| 03 [00YDS pue ‘geysy Jo *3daq ‘sassauIsng (20| UM Jauped e v S - EMo_umn_u_tmn
"dId Ul bupjednipied siawnsuod yoely pue AJnuap] e ON-MSN an wH-MﬁoN an u:wﬂ_p__..hm__n_ﬂ__w
; wesbo.ud diysutaiul pied ayy buipiebal siapinoid
o0 o CMM_HAC ; d ay JUI pled ay} @U pIAGd 6I-8T0Z LT -9T0Z —kuﬁhmwuﬂ_
[e20] pu lunwwod ‘Jejs 03 uonew.ojul pue bujuiely apinold e ‘5annadwod
uj paoejd aiam oym
sjjnpe jo JaquinN ‘¢
(421329 s1 13yb1t))
"uofjejljiqeysy Jo Juswpedsq ayj pue ‘sspusbe VD ul sanjjiqesip
[euoeINP3 |RIO| ‘Y)Y Usamiaq Juswsalbe diysiauped |ed0| ysijgelsy e — AL %EVT %S'bT 11e y3im ajdoad
"(da@3) wswpedsq juswdojpasq JuswAoldwg 8T-LT0C 8T-£LT0¢ 0} paiedwod 9
9U3 Wody buiwodyLIo) S| B3RP SAINSEI|N MN *SSaJb04d doel| e -9T sobe siawnsuod
jo sbuju.les jenuuy *g
(oz6T Ad)
€S0°0T$ (12135 51 J3bIty)
"(a@3) uswpedsq uswdojsasqg JuswAhoidwg| swooug - 6268 8698 9-9T saobe
9U3 wody buiwodyioy S| e3ep saunsealy MaN ‘ssalboid dpei] ¢f  [enuuy 1 8T-/T10C 8T-ZT0Z |si1ownsuod 1o) sebem
310/d1d lenuue abelsay g
abe.lany
"uoneyliqeyay Jo Juswpedaq sy pue ‘sepusbe|  o4zT V2 oMom._n (42m8q s1 42461t)
|euonednps [e20] ‘JYy Usamyaq Juswsalbe diysiauped (20| ysiqeisy o] (Asains H@ﬂ hﬂwmﬁ 0S9 (LYt ord w:.._ww_ou_ﬁ_.
S04 8 (qq3) usuniedaq| uosiad | SIS | opeevT | 9008bE | o PoncooemnbO
JuswdojpAsq JuswAoldws ayy wo.y BujwodyLos S| e1ep SaInsesjy MaN | -UI IDN) -uI ION) 8T-LT10C 8T-LI0C R ———
SWwodul pauJes Yyim $9-9T sabe siswnsuod Ajpuapr of ST-LT0T ST-£T02 pue Joquinp T
abeisany abeiany
awo21no an31ydy 03 Aojdwig [jIm 183UdD [eUOIBAY SIINNIIOY o)) apIMazers o)) 4 spImazels Sso.inseap

(quswAojdwz o3 pajeray) sainseapy aoueuriopad A21/od d1/qnd

NV7d LOVYLINOD IJONVINHOSH3d




SIX" 1 4vdd 2202 ue|d 1oBsjuo) asuewlomad 9 abed
(4a1399 s1 12y61Y))
~1edA |eosyy
NMm /sy Jouid ay3 Burinp
Hoday |enuue sgqg wou) pauieiqo eleq o]  ZTI'ST dar v_%r_\ M-ﬁ_me - u-“ﬂhwoh_n_u“_w_h_mmh“ﬂu\“ﬂ
buiwooyypioy Ji e3ep saunsesw map ‘ssalbold yoeu] e| 1Y/00°CT$ ST-/102 oYM S3Npe 10 }oOM
0c-6T0C J3d payiom sinoy
pue sabem paiejes
J1o Ajinoy abeldaay '9
(423394 s1 13yb1ty)
weaboid
diysussjug pied
: e uj uonedpiied
"uonejijiqeysy Jo uswpedsqg syl pue ‘sapusbe (%¥8°L) Buimojjoy
dId TS J0
[eUO}RINPA |BIO] ‘Y)Y Usam)aq Juswsalbe diysieuped [eao| ysijgelsy « N0 paIy b an an an juswiojdwa
buiwooyyio) J1 e3Rp Sainseaw ma| "ssalbodd doed] e ) pajeib3jul
0C-6T0C ‘5anRadwod
ul pase|d
ale oym sjjnpe
Jo abejuadiad 'S
ouiooInQ aAaIloy o3 Aojduwy IM JoJUD, euoibay saI3NIlD adleced WQ.N.\W\-T auljesed QQNKQ\_T S24Nnsesl
s i S e Aoy 2y spimazess | ouy opimaze}s

NV7d LOVYLNOD JONVINHO4H3d




SIX'1 4v¥d 2202 Ue|d }oBjjU0D 9ouBWIoSd

/ abed

"jJuswAojdws pajesbajul, snsiaa JuswAoidwa AJlunwiwod,, a4nsesw N e

*Adnng (IDN) J03ed1put 210D [euoneN uielqo e
"S9A1199(qO 33y} Yoed3 03 moy uo uejd e dojsasp 01 DY e

adal

agl

%LE
BAY DU
ST-¥T0C

%LT
bay aje1s
ST-¥T0C

(123394 s1 43y61tf)
ddI 113y} ui [eob
e se juawAiojdws
pajeibajul buiaey
papodal oym s3npe
Jo aberjuadiad '6

Hoday |enuue SQQ WOJ) paulelqo eyeq e
Buiwooypio) 41 B3RP SaINseaw MaN "ssalbo.d yoed] e

(T)o0SsT$
(9)oszt$
(s)ooot$
0Z-6T10C

agl

(€)oosT$
(R)oszts
(€)ooots
8T-LT0T

agl

000°c$ pue 005 Z$
vo0°z$ o3 pabueyo
aney sjpusuided
annuasul Iz/10/£0
oAN/100/4F /9JON
(421399 s1 12ybity)
l1eah |eosiy ayy
Jo} apeuw sjuswAied
9AIUADUI 0OSTS
pue 0SZT$ ‘000T$
Jo Jaquinu jejo] 'g

poday [enuue SgQ wolj pauieiqo eyeq e
Buiwooypioy 41 B3RP SaINSeaW MaN 'ssalboud yoed] e

AMm/say
99°/T

14/9T'CT$

0Z-6T0T

agl

AMm/say sz
14/99'¢T$
8T-£10¢C

aglr

(423394 s1 43y61tf)
‘dpeuw us3(q aaey
sjuswAed aanRuadul
woym Jo jjeyaq
uo “qQuawiojdwa

pajelbajul
‘sannadwod
ul pabebua s3jnpe .10}
pa)lom sinoy pue
sobem dbelany '/

auI021n0 aA31YdY 03 Aojdwig [[IM 183U JRUOIESY SIIJINIIOY

oc-6roc
auyjjaseg
o)) |

abesony
apimazels

auyaseg
DN

abesony
apimazels

sainseay

NV1d LOVY.LNOD JONVINHO4¥Id



SIX"14vdd ¢c0c ueld 1oesjuo) sduewlopad

g abed

%69
%199 SHim
SHuM %79
"PSZI|13N J0U dJe SIIIAIDS Usym - /Y30
SIOpUSA pue sajjilie) ‘Sjusid Y)m A[SSO|D HI0M 0} SI0JBUIPI00D) SIIAISS e %8 0L .
"Papasu se juswisnipe axew pue sedul ueoLPwy %I'T9 *19p|0
9Je 3.y} seofoeldd Jualind Suy} MIIASJ ‘plepuels Japun s|e) uonezipn OAREN uedrdwy | pue om3-Ajuam]
JI "UOREZIIN *SA sdueIqunddud mum_\_ao‘_aam 10} pjoyalyt] e ysijgeiss %9°89 -. %G°69 9ANEN *9AISNoUl
PUB UOeZ|IIN "SA S30UBIQUINDUS 10) SPUJ} BIRp I0PUSA DAISSGO 03 DYMe| - Z2 %899 v -2 - ‘12 03 934y} aby 4
"S9|/AJIBS Buissadde ul sislueq Ayuapi pue siseq dipouad e uo SIS - djuedsiy - %S'T9 *3AISNDUl
40 uonez||iin sy} MaiARI 03 A[9S0JD J0JUOW ||IM JOJRUIPI00D) 3DIAISS o] 04 T'9G o\on..mw 04LE°CE oluedsiH | ‘om) abe 03 ypHig
"9DIAISS 1094100 BY3 SS90k 0] |eRuassa|  TZ - € 18pUEST I¢-€ - :9be pue Aypiuyye
$59004d [ell3ga4 9y Yum Ybnoiyy mojjo4 03 pue ‘saljiwe) pue JaWnsuod - SR JAYI0 - %S'8L S.lenpiAlpul
93 Jo spasu 3y} Ajybnoloyy ssasse 03 yeis Joj bujuiesy psoueyuy «f %P E9 ‘_.o.:m__m Mey %S"09 {9pue|s Aq sainjipuadxa
"SYIomMisu Jeys Aieg buizinn ‘este Juswydied sy Ul [siesA g 03 yuiqg] -0 o >mmz -0 Jided 1ayjo 9VIAIBS
uaJp[iyd BunoA y3im saljiwey BuiAIS SINUBA Uj S9IAISS J21USD [euolbal B 10 ueliemey | jo aseydind jenuue
Inoge suopejussasd [euonednps ybnodyy bujujesy pue yoeaInNo IPNPUOD) e %69 9AnEeN 18303 JO jJudd.iad
"J9A0 pue sieaA g pue ‘sieah g 03 yuiq Joy Auledsip vV /oeg 3
ssaippe 0} ue(d e Juswsjdwi 03 Juels Ajuiedsiq SAQ Y3 PAZIAN [IM DY) h %6799
%ol €9 vv/@oe|g
Hesy %S°S9
ueisy
Pazljiin SIoV 11V Paziinn SIoOV 17V
» aby P3ZI[1N % » by P3ZII13N %
awo21nQ andy oy o3 Aojduig jjim 183U [eUOIBAY SBINNIIY 0Z-6T0Z i ST-5T0z T pro- sainseap
VEpo).) | VEpo).) AL JYN AL DN

(sainypuadxy saoinias Jo aseysund ul Aynbz buirosdur pue saniiedsiq bunpay o3 pajefay) sainseap adueIopdd A21/od 21/qnd

NV7ld LOVYLNOD JONVINHOS4H3d




SIX'14v¥d 220¢ ue|d 1oeiqjuo) 20ueuwlollad 6 wmmn_
JuBwdoaaq 418pup = df)r Saunsesy asuelduwo)
0,
%S"ET ww_m%
9Yym "
%S"LT o
s
. _ “19p|o
%T'CE %¥b'9T %02 pue omy-Aqjuam]
'$921n0saJ J1Iausb Jo uoiejuswnoop pue poddns pue o - uedHRWwy ZS9 uesLIBWY *2AISN DUl
S80IAIBS JO uonezipn Ajiwey yym dn mojjoy ‘uonezinn pue sainypuadxs| YoL'LT 2AnEN =77 SARER Tz 03 22113 9bY
SOd BuiMaIAG Ul J0jeuIpI00) 2dIAISS Jo) Bulules pasueyug of v " €C 3 - - "2AISnUl
‘0fjes peojased 2Npal 0} JO}IOM 3Sed [euopippe i of . u._.\hwnm_m %1 Ot %S"0E ‘omy abe 03 ypig
"S1eJ|op SOd Aq papuny Jou seojss (o] Y8 "y MESSIH 1 6pgr | owedsiy | & :Kiuyze
9pN|oul 03 |[IM DY Sse20.d (ddI) ueld welbo.d [enpiAlpul 8yl ybnody] e ﬁN- I IZ-€ - pue abe Aq sadinl0s
EUE o) %6'S 1opuelsy - %0¢ juswabeuew
93 JO SP33U 3y] J9aW 0] JUIIYNS BF 03 SSNURUOI JusWwabeuew ased No- 0 ouded B0 %6°6 49pue|sT | ased Ajuo Buialedal
JeU} 2.nsse (1M Dy Sse004d (ddI) ueld welboid [enpiApul a4} ybnodyy e 10 uelemey 6CT n..__w._w_wn___ Mwhwo s|enpialpul
sAREN Z-0 Snnl H Jo juaouad
- 3eN - pue JaquinN
%6T
%8"'TC
oe
vv/oeig vvhpea
%E 6T o e
Ao soby ||y Aoruyys saby Iy
ik Aoruyy /14 Ayoruyyz
ouioo1nQ aAaIoY o1 A Q\QEW im ia3us) \NQQ\QWQ SoINIPV IV OC-6T0C 0Z-6T0Z 6T-8T0Z 6T-8T0Z S2.1Nseap)
il AL DN AL DN AL DN

NV7d LOVHELNOD JONVINYO4¥3d




SIX"14vdd 220¢ ue|d 1oeljuo) soduewlojed

0l ebed

fousuiny
. o] © . 0 . o . o "
¥S3/43aD Jo uons|dwod Ajpwn Jojuow 03 anURUOD /S E"86 /06E°86 /oCT 86 /oE°86 AS3/¥aad 'L
XWMMWQ Icoc NNMWWQ ococ aunf
awoo1nQ aA31ydy 03 Aojdwiz [/Im 183UdD [eUOIBRY SBIYAIIIY A/ng abeiany abesony sainseap
se aujjaseg e se aulfaseq e
o)-) i o)) &
’ 0T uondas ‘III
PRAUOD Ly SoueNdWED Uflulel o SAA SV ‘Poenuod Jad sjuswalinbay 3pny J0pusp ym sduerdwo) 9
"SjuswWalinbal JaAl_A pIRDIPaIY UM 20uRl|dWod ulRuIR)y e S3IA JoAIR M Ul 93edpijied 03 payipa) *g
‘uopedo|e .
abpn uiyym sajesad
Spunj |euonelado ayj uiyym a3esado 03 uejd dojaaaq e S3A 190pNQq SdO Uit 3 oY
"M3JARJ uonezijn buiobuo pue Aiojsiy uo .
C] suonoafo.d |edsi 0 judd4ad Adeindd
paseq suonoafoid [easy SOd Jo Adeindoe paroiduil 03 SALIS e S3A (dv0s Aten.qad uo paseq) suonoa(o.d [edsyy SO 40 3 V'E
*sa|dipund bupunodoe paydadoe Ajjeisusb STA jipne jeosiy
pue saonoeld sssuisng poob ujejuiew pue Ajdde ‘ysiqeisg e S9OIAIRS [ejuawdojanaq Jo Juswpedag ypm asueljdwod jenueisqns 'z
*se|dipulid Buunodoe pajdedde Ajjelsushb
A y . o ne juspuadspuil payijenbun -
pue saop3oeld ssauisng poob uiejuiew pue Ajdde ‘ysigeisy e S3A (£)BUIPUY jepis3ew ou yam 3ipne Judpuadapu) payl| n-t
auioo1nQ0 aA8IYdYy 03 Aojduiz [fim 193uB) [euoIbay saniniy | on/sas sa.inseap

NV1d LOVYLNOD ONVINHOH¥3d




SIX"14vdd 220¢ ue|d 1oeljuo) souewlojad

L1 ebed

"Sjuswadinbas Aiojnieys bupssw spiemoy

*2A0qe pue
€ sabe s1awnsuod

SAOW 0} SS2304d U B3 JO M3IASL BAISUSYSIdWOD e 239|dwo) | 9%%6£°66 %.2'86 %S8/"LS8 %62'I6 10} souj| sawn
jusussasse /ayejut
"Juswssasse/ayejul Jo uons|dwod Alpwiy aunsus 0 uejd Juswa|dw] e 6
AWMWWQ rcoc mwmwwe ococ aung
auw021n0 aA31YdY 03 Aojdwiz [{Im 183UBD [BUOIESY SIIIINIIIY se oulpaseg AMN MMMMWM Ve sujeseg QMWMMWM W.m. sainsesp
o2.) 4 = 02.) 4 i
"(z-0)
‘[£4] syuswadinbas /11 yym soueldwod uiejuie *ds4I saul| 2w} 4ds41I pue
I ! ! 1ejul g : o o ! I
pue juswssasse/ayejul Jo uons|dwod Alpwil a4nsus 01 Juswa|dw] e aal %L9°96 %85 Lt juswissasse /ayejug
'8
Jods, oda Hodoy,
aLwo21no an31ydy 03 Aofduwig [Im 123us) [eUoIBaY SAIFNIIOY 2cs i ZT Jobue aze3s sa.inseap
~IC0C Add | 6I-8T0C A4 | _ 9T0Z Add

NV7d LOVYLNOD JONVINNOL4HId




SIX" 1 4vHd 2202 Ueld 10BJJUOD SoUBWLIONSY Z| abeyd

*Jauuew Ajpwi e ul Juswssasse 239|dwod 0} S32JN0saJ ajenbape aARY 0 2.nsSug e
"O¥) 03 € Jo abe sy} Jspun uaJpjiyd 104 S|eLlajal Jo Jaquinu
ul ymmoub sy} 1oy syuswssasse Hels Alieg bupajdwod uj seainosal [euonippe dojpasq e . _—
"auljow sAep g4 spedwi yaym /1 m.w_u_._.v
S90URISWNDID Ajiiey [euondadxs ale a4ay3 USYM JUNodde 03 Juswssasse bupajdwod u %9/ % 0P %001 sul swn Aep §p
SAe[op Y)M Sanss| ale aJay) JoAsUSYM Pa3a|dwiod 3q [|IM UOIRIUSWNI0P YBnoloyy v 3 peq JuswdoPasg
Seul dS4I [eniuI uy ‘1T
swif} buipnpul ‘sse004d dS4I Sy Jo 10adse |je Uo paulel) 3q |[|IM SI0JRUIPI00D) BDIAISS e
"[SY] seoinias uonuaAuT Alieg BulAedad Ualpjiyd pue sjuejul Joj sued
weJbold jenpiapul Jo uons|dwod Alpwiy o) /T SALL JO Juswalnbal |8 yum Aidwo)) e
odb, Hodsy
awoo1nQ aAdIYoYy 03 Aojduiz [jim 183u3) [eUOIBBY SSIFINIIOY $oaey 6T 10618 33818 so.unseap
0C-6TI0C Ad4
-8T0C AdH
‘Sauljown
Bulpnjoul ‘ssa004d ddI a4 JO SydSe ||e UO paules) 3¢ [|IM SI0]eUIPI00D) DIAISS MIN e «
S103}eUIPJ00) DIAISS JOJUSS 10 0 0 e'9'z)sjuswalinbai
Pauosess 10j sepod JIM  Yum Ajueljiwey Buipnpul ‘sauljswiy dd1 uo buiuiesy aoueyug e asal /oL6 /006 JIM) Juswdojonaqg
"Olje] peO|ased 92NpaJ 0} JSHJOM 3SBD [RUORIPPE 3JIH e ddI ‘0T
'OV UBWISIURT 3y} J3pun Se2IAIS BulAledal siawnsuod Joj sued welboud
[enpiAipul Jo uonajdwiod Ajpwiy Joj (£)(2)5°9¥9H DIM JO Juswalinbal e yym Aldwo) e
Icoc MQN%..M\ Zroc
awo23nQ aAdlYdy o3 Aojduirg [jim 183UBD [eUOIBBY SBIYAIIOY Hodoy ypny pny Hodsy yipny sainseap
. & % e nrits onuaNay mh.tm\_mt oSN BY
jesapa4 (eropoir jesspa

NV1d LOVYLINOD FONVINHO4¥3d




SIX'14¥HAd 22¢0¢ ue|d Joeljuo) aduewlopad €| abedq

1938

10103.1Q 9AIRNJAXT J23UD) |euoiBay UISY *Q'yd ‘s91e9 'V IUDIA

103.1J DY Jo adnjeubis

“[(m(g)(3) 629t 21M] s9A1R23[q0 By3 Jo uondope 8.09q PaJSPISUOD pue UsMe) 3] |im Indur d1jgnd [euoRIppe
a4aym bupsaw pleoq Jsjusd [euoibal e je uonejuasald 03 Joud ndu; Joy Ajunwwod 9y3 03 SaA1a[qo sduewIopad a3 Jo Yelp e bunenaly) e

‘pue :(sauljppinb) Bunssw d1jgnd sy Jo S3ep ay3 Jo 3d130u dljgnd SdueAPR SABP JEpUR|RD US) 3SB3) 1B BUIPINOI] e

[(n)(@)(d) 629v DIM] Ajunwiwiod sy3 wo.y uopew.oul
399100 03 sASAINs 1o sdnob snooy buisn pue saARa(qo souewiopad uo ndul spinosd ued syuedpiped aJ4aym bupasw oiignd e Bunonpuo) e

L()(@)(2) 629% DIM] suonedtado Jsyuad [euolbas ayy pue spoddns pue SadIAISS UO BIep SuljRSeq
pue uopnew.oyul 386png Buipnpul ‘spoddns pue sed1AIBS J83uld [euolbal JNoge AJIUNWWOD 3y 0] ‘wJoy 9|qepueisiapun ue uj ‘uopewdoul buipinold e

:papnjoul Yoiym ssedo.d 21ignd e ybnoayy padojensp sem 1oeajuod souewopad sy

"SaUl[SPIND 10B.[UOD SdULWIOLSd 2Z0T 489A (SAQ) ,S01MBS [eluswidopAs( Jo Juswpedaq ay3 pue 6794 UOIISS 3po7) SUOANJSUT pue aJejl9/n Ul
Paypads sjuswalinbal 8y} y3m 0UBpPI0d. Ul PadojaASp SeM 10BIUOD SIUBWLIONAY ZZ0Z JESA Jepusje) ToTUS) [euoibay uis)] ey} alnsse 03 SI SIy L

SIDNVINSSY 40 LINIWILVLS

NV1d LOVILNOD IONVINHO4¥3d



Attachment 5

KERN REGIONAL CENTER BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Policy

TITLE: EMPLOYMENT FIRST POLICY NO.

DATE SUBMITTED: 02/23/2021

PURPOSE: To be consistent with the Lanterman Act, California Welfare and Institutions Code, Section
4629(c) and Section 4869(a) Employment First Policy.

POLICY: This Employment First Policy addresses that opportunities for integrated, competitive
employment will be given the highest priority for working age individuals with developmental
disabilities, regardless of the severity of their disabilities.

Competitive employment means work in the competitive labor market that is performed on a full-time
and part-time basis in an integrated setting and for which an individual is compensated at or above the
minimum wage, but not less than the customary wage and level of benefits paid by the employer for the
same or similar work performed by individuals who are disabled.

Kern Regional Center will measure progress, and report outcomes, in implementing the Employment
First Policy, which may include, but are not limited to measures addressing the following:

1. Establishment of local partnership agreements between regional centers, local educational
agencies, and the Department of Rehabilitation districts [WIC 4629(c)(1)(A)(v)(T)].

2. Provide information to consumers regarding the Employment First Policy, opportunities for
employment, and available supports to achieve integrated competitive employment by [WIC
4629(c)(1)(A)(v)(ID): .

a. Providing information, in an understandable form, to the community about regional
center services and supports, including budget information and baseline data.

b. Conducting a public meeting where participants can provide input on employment
performance objectives and using focus groups or surveys to collect information from the
community.

c¢. Circulating a draft of the employment performance objectives to the community for input
prior to presentation at a regional center board meeting.

d. Presentation for board input before adoption of the objectives.

3. Integrated competitive employment to be the first option considered by planning teams for
working age individuals, but individuals may choose goals other than integrated competitive
employment [WIC 4689(a)(3)].

4. Consideration of postsecondary education, technical or vocational training, and internship
programs may be considered as a means to achieve integrated competitive employment or career
advancement [WIC 4689(a)(4)].

Approval Date: MM/DD/YYYY

Revision Date:



Attachment 6
Enclosure B

STATE OF CALIFORNIA--HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor

DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

1215 O Street, MS 8-30
Sacramento, CA 95814
TTY: 711

(833) 421-0061

October 7, 2021

TO: REGIONAL CENTER EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SUBJECT: RESTORATION OF CAMPING, SOCIAL RECREATION AND OTHER
SERVICES PER WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE SECTION
4648.5

Effective July 1, 2021, changes to Welfare and Institutions (W&I) Code section 4648.5
restores regional center authority to fund camping services and associated travel
expenses; social recreation activities; educational services for children three to 17,
inclusive, years of age; and nonmedical therapies, including, but not limited to,
specialized recreation, art, dance, and music. Regional centers are advised to take
proactive steps to inform their community of the changes to W&I Code section 4648.5.

The Department of Developmental Services (Department) requests that regional
centers provide information to service coordinators and conduct outreach to consumers,
families, providers and local community organizations to facilitate awareness about the
availability of these services. Outreach and information sharing should extend to
individuals and families who may not typically use these types of services or other
regional center purchased services, but who may benefit from receiving these services.
In developing outreach activities, regional centers must consider actions that will
increase awareness and facilitate the sharing of information with non-English speaking
individuals and communities of color. Service coordinators should discuss the
availability of these restored services and related consumer needs during the Individual
Program Plan meeting, consistent with W&I Code section 4646(a).

Each regional center must submit an outreach plan to the Department. Additionally,
each regional center must revise its purchase of service (POS) policies, as necessary, to
reflect restoration of funding for these services and promote compliance with this change
in statute and submit them to the Department for review and approval. The outreach
plan and revised POS policies are due to the Department by December 15, 2021.

“Building Partnerships, Supporting Choices”



Regional Center Executive Directors
October 7, 2021
Page two

The Department will translate this correspondence into the identified threshold languages
and will post the English and translated versions on our website. If you have questions
about this correspondence, please contact your Primary Liaison or the Office of
Community Operations at (833) 421-0061.

Sincerely,
Original Signed by:

ERICA REIMER SNELL
Deputy Director
Community Services Division

CE: Regional Center Administrators
Regional Center Directors of Consumer Services
Regional Center Community Services Directors
Association of Regional Center Agencies



. re s . . . Attachment 7
Socialization, Leisure and Recreation Skills

Kern Regional Center Policy

Socialization, leisure and recreation services are those services and supports designed to enhance the
development of appropriate socialization skills for children who may have social skill challenges that limit age-
appropriate socialization opportunities or adults who may have difficulty developing friendships. Such services may
include activities that involve sports, hobbies, music appreciation, arts, Ielsure education, service club participation and
the development of other leisure time skills.

Social skills are those abilities and behaviors needed to initiate, plan, explore and participate in meaningful, age
appropriate social relationships and activities.

Social skills challenges may include, but are not limited to: excessive shyness or passivity; limited responses to
social approaches by others; inappropriate social interactions (e.g., teasing/bullying); excessive friendly advances toward
others; socially unacceptable mannerisms, difficulty in developing friendships, and other behaviors (easily frustrated,
resistive) that might interfere with appropriate social interaction with peers and others.

KRC recognizes that socialization, leisure and recreation activities are valuable and will support efforts to
remove barriers and to facilitate our clients’ full participation, along with other citizens, in a broad range of such
community opportunities. In doing so we will pursue the goal of services to persons with developmental disabilities in
the most inclusive setting and the maximum possible participation in typical socialization, leisure and recreational
settings in the community. In communities where such opportunities are not available to persons with developmental
disabilities, KRC will encourage publicly and privately funded socialization, leisure and recreational programs to adapt
their services in order to accommodate our clients.

KRC also recognizes, however, that some individuals with developmental disabilities are precluded from
participation in typical social activities by virtue of their behavior, physical condition or level of skill. Such children and
adults often require sports that are absent from many typical social/recreation programs. Accordingly, KRC will purchase
socialization, leisure and recreation services or supports under the following circumstances:

e When the client is at least (3) years of age; and

e When an Interdisciplinary Team has determined that the client has a social skill (challenge(s), as defined
above, and such challenge(s) has been documented in the client’s record; and

e An opportunity has been identified to achieve an improvement in the client’s social, recreational and
leisure life in the community or to develop friendships; and

¢ No socialization, leisure or recreational opportunity is otherwise available to the client. In making this
determination, KRC, the client and the family must first make reasonable efforts to identify and use
typical community socialization, leisure or recreation programs to meet the client’s needs. Such
reasonable efforts must include consideration of the provision of supports (natural or purchased) which
will enable the client to participate in a typical social/recreational program. KRC will not purchase a
segregated socialization program when there is a generic service which is willing (either with or without
supports) to include the client in its activities; and

e The need for the purchased service is documented in the client’s Individual Program Plan which also
includes specific desired outcomes and plans to develop social skills or friendships with the overall goal
of including the client in social/recreation activities with nondisabled peers; and



The purchase of segregated socialization programming is for a reasonable time-limited period (the
client’s progress in achieving specific outcomes must be reviewed at intervals not to exceed six months
and there must be evidence that progress is being made in order to continue the service; it is expected
that the client will be included in typical community recreational programs, with supports if necessary,
following the purchase of segregated socialization programming); and

In determining the frequency/duration of socialization, leisure or recreation skill development for a child
with a developmental disability, care is taken not to unduly interfere with the time that families spend
together in social activities during weekends and vacations; and

Social, leisure and recreation programs are not designed to be used as a child care services for working
parents (see Guidelines on Child Care), or as an ongoing source of recreation and the purchase of these
services for such purposes will not be authorized; and

Social/recreational activities should not interfere with or occur during educational programming and or
adult day programming; and

KRC believes that participation by clients in a socialization, leisure or recreation program may also meet
a family’s need for respite. Accordingly, KRC will review the purchase of both respite and social, leisure
and recreation services and make individual adjustments accordingly.

Clients who live in community care and health care residential homes are entitled to receive social,
leisure and recreation services as part of such residential programming; as a rule these services may not
be purchased for clients who reside in such licensed homes. Campership not to exceed two weeks will
be allowed.

Clients may choose to attend up to a two week campership as a socialization, leisure and recreational
activity. For minor children, families will be asked to assume parental responsibilities. KRC’s participation
in providing for a camp purchase will be viewed as meeting respite, socialization, leisure or recreational
objectives. Individual adjustment in purchased services will be reviewed accordingly.




e KRC may purchase supported community integration programming at a 1:1 staff to client ratio to
develop the client’s ability to independently access the community through circles of supports.

Approved ........c.........

KRC Board of Directors



